
DORR TOWNSHIP LIBRARY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

MEETING
Dorr Township Library

Time: April 17, 2023 @ 6:30 pm

Call to Order:

Roll Call:

Changes to the Agenda:

Public Comment:

Approval of the Agenda:

Approval of the Minutes: March 28, 2023

Treasurer’s Report: Credit Card - $2,915.87 for March

Director’s Report:

Committee Reports:

NEW BUSINESS:
1. Discussion and approval of FYE 2024 Budget revision
2. Discussion of FYE 2023 Year-End Financial Forecast
3. Discussion of Volunteer Policy revision

OLD BUSINESS:
1. Discussion and Approval of Cleaning Services replacement
2. Discussion and approval of Dorr Business Association monthly use of the Community Room

Township Board Meeting: April 27, 2023 7 pm.

Adjournment:

Next regular meeting: May 15, 2023 at 6:30 pm



DORR TOWNSHIP LIBRARY

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Dorr Township Library

Date: March 28, 2023

6:30 P.M.

MINUTES

Meeting was called to order at 6:32 pm

Pledge of Allegiance: Was said.

Roll Call: Present-Carrie Brooks, Brittany Hunter, Derrick McLain, Shana Dykhuis, Michael Rydman, Reilly Brower

Absent: Bruce Bendell, Jeffrey Babbitt

Additions to the Agenda: None

Public Comment: None

Approval of the Agenda: Brooks made a motion to approve the agenda, and was seconded by Hunter. All yes, motion carried.

Approval of the Minutes: McLain made a motion to accept the minutes from February 20, 2023, and was seconded by Dykhuis. All yes, motion

carried.

Treasurer’s Report: Treasurer Dykhuis made a motion to pay the February credit card bill in the amount of $2,861.26 and was seconded by

McLain. All yes, motion carried.

Committee Report(s): None

Director’s Report:

Storytime is going well, Karen S had 14 children at her Dr. Seuss Storytime on March 7. Lexi’s program’s continue to be popular. Jen’s

Writing & Critique Group continues to grow. Summer Reading planning is in full Swing, with a Hometown Heroes Theme. Contact has

begun for storytellers for Plates ‘n’ Pages. Circulation is strong. Budget is up to date. We received the new security system, maintenance

says it can be installed in about a month. Cleaning service has given notice. The Director is being trained at the circulation desk. Staff

evaluations were completed. The Director attended several meetings and workshops. The volunteer has nearly completed her hours.

The library was closed due to weather on February 23 and 23, as well as March 10.

Committee Report:

None

.

NEW BUSINESS:

1. Discussion of Cleaning Services Replacement : There were no respondes to the RFP for cleaning services for the library. The Board

offered other options and suggested other businesses to contact.

2. Discussion and approval of Dorr Business Association monthly use of the Community room: There was not enough information

available in the Director’s absence to make a decision. Brooks made a motion to table for more information, and was seconded by

McLain. All yes, motion carried

OLD BUSINESS

1. Approval of 5% across-the-board wage increase for employees: Increases were approved for all staff members, based on their

performance in their employee evaluations, they ranged from 2% to 5%.

2. Discussion and approval of FYE 2024 Budget: Mclain motioned to approve the budget with the noted reduction in wages and benefits,

and was seconded by Rydman. All yes, motion carried.

Township Board Meeting: April 27, 2023 at 7:00 p.m.

Adjournment: McLain motioned to adjourn at 7:32 p.m., and was seconded by Brooks. All yes, motion carried.

Next regular meeting: April 17, 2023, at 6:30 p.m.

Submitted by Carrie Brooks



DORR TOWNSHIP LIBRARY
Balance Sheet

As of March 31, 2023

Accrual Basis  Monday, April 10, 2023 05:16 PM GMT-04:00   1/2

TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

271-000-001 Checking 312,747.50

271-000-002 Savings 254,913.64

271-000-003 Huntington CD 6,418.75

Total Bank Accounts $574,079.89

Other Current Assets

271-000-040 019. Audit Accts Receivable 10,226.61

Total Other Current Assets $10,226.61

Total Current Assets $584,306.50

TOTAL ASSETS $584,306.50

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

271-000-202 Accounts Payable 0.00

Total Accounts Payable $0.00

Other Current Liabilities

271-000-204 Audit Accts Payable 3,345.67

271-000-231.1 Payroll Liabilities 191.25

215. MI Unemployment Tax 0.00

271-000-228.1 212. MI Income Tax 326.14

271-000-228.2 214. MI Income Tax -68.88

271-000-228.3 MI Income Tax 422.91

271-000-229.1 Federal Taxes (941/944) 620.90

271-000-229.2 Federal Unemployment (940) 55.81

271-000-229.3 211. Federal Unemployment (940) -859.26

271-000-229.4 213. Federal Taxes (941/944) 705.18

271-000-231.2 216. Blue Cross Dental 250.04

271-000-231.3 217. Blue Cross Vision 1,287.16

271-000-231.4 Blue Cross Dental 5.48

271-000-231.5 Blue Cross Vision 40.66

MI Unemployment Tax 0.00

Total 271-000-231.1 Payroll Liabilities 2,977.39

701. Direct Deposit Payable 0.00

Direct Deposit Payable 0.00

Total Other Current Liabilities $6,323.06

Total Current Liabilities $6,323.06

Total Liabilities $6,323.06



DORR TOWNSHIP LIBRARY
Balance Sheet

As of March 31, 2023

Accrual Basis  Monday, April 10, 2023 05:16 PM GMT-04:00   2/2

TOTAL

Equity

271-000-389 012. Opening Bal Equity 120,892.09

271-000-390 013. Fund Balance 397,029.68

Net Income 60,061.67

Total Equity $577,983.44

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $584,306.50



Check Register 2023 - March
Date Type Check # Vender Memo Amount
03/01/2023 Check 16069 CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT Invoice #1990503 -65.99
03/01/2023 Check 16070 Lakeland Library Cooperative Invoice #PT23-758 -17.95
03/03/2023 Check 16071 Farmers Disposal Quarterly trash pickup -54.00
03/03/2023 Check 16072 Book Farm LLC Invoice #ERG13587E -181.95
03/09/2023 Tax Payment IRS Tax Payment for Period: 02/01/2023-02/28/2023 -1,335.68
03/09/2023 Check 16074 UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC Invoice #6110796 -9.85
03/10/2023 Payroll Check DD Jeffrey L. Babbitt Pay Period: 02/22/2023-03/07/2023 -1,168.26
03/10/2023 Payroll Check DD Reilly J. Brower Pay Period: 02/22/2023-03/07/2023 -352.61
03/10/2023 Payroll Check DD Jennifer L. Chamberlain Pay Period: 02/22/2023-03/07/2023 -669.68
03/10/2023 Payroll Check DD Karen E. Brower Pay Period: 02/22/2023-03/07/2023 -271.14
03/10/2023 Payroll Check DD Alexis Adrianse Pay Period: 02/22/2023-03/07/2023 -402.80
03/10/2023 Payroll Check DD Karen K. Shaffer Pay Period: 02/22/2023-03/07/2023 -368.61
03/10/2023 Payroll Check DD Shera Van Goor Pay Period: 02/22/2023-03/07/2023 -215.44

03/13/2023 Check 16075 Foster, Swift, Collins & Smith
Invoice #853656
 Anne Seurynck consultation with Board, Jan 16 -728.50

03/13/2023 Check 16076 Jeffrey L. Babbitt Mileage reimbursement March -33.67
03/17/2023 Check 16077 Fish Window Cleaning Invoice #1460-242986 -120.00
03/20/2023 Tax Payment MI Department of Treasury Tax Payment for Period: 02/01/2023-02/28/2023 -289.16
03/24/2023 Payroll Check DD Jennifer L. Chamberlain Pay Period: 03/08/2023-03/21/2023 -669.69
03/24/2023 Payroll Check DD Karen E. Brower Pay Period: 03/08/2023-03/21/2023 -271.15
03/24/2023 Payroll Check DD Jeffrey L. Babbitt Pay Period: 03/08/2023-03/21/2023 -1,168.26
03/24/2023 Payroll Check DD Reilly J. Brower Pay Period: 03/08/2023-03/21/2023 -283.96
03/24/2023 Payroll Check DD Karen K. Shaffer Pay Period: 03/08/2023-03/21/2023 -331.76
03/24/2023 Payroll Check DD Alexis Adrianse Pay Period: 03/08/2023-03/21/2023 -394.11
03/24/2023 Payroll Check DD Shera Van Goor Pay Period: 03/08/2023-03/21/2023 -227.15
03/24/2023 Check 16078 US Bank Equipment Finance Invoice #496821026 -399.91
03/31/2023 Expense Chase Card Services -2,915.87
03/31/2023 Check 16080 Midwest Tape Invoice #503585460 -503.16



DORR TOWNSHIP LIBRARY
General Ledger

March 2023

Accrual Basis  Monday, April 10, 2023 05:18 PM GMT-04:00   1/2

DATE TRANSACTION 
TYPE

NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION SPLIT AMOUNT BALANCE

271-000-001 Checking

Beginning 
Balance

308,004.95

03/01/2023 Check 16069 CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT Invoice #1990503 271-790-727 703-728. Operations:703. Books -65.99 307,938.96

03/01/2023 Check 16070 Lakeland Library Cooperative Invoice #PT23-758 271-790-738 703-728. Operations:720. Supplies:720.1 Collection/Office Supplies -17.95 307,921.01

03/03/2023 Check 16071 Farmers Disposal 271-790-921 729-734. Facilities and Equipment:729. Rent, Parking, Utilities -54.00 307,867.01

03/03/2023 Check 16072 Book Farm LLC Invoice #ERG13587E -Split- -181.95 307,685.06

03/06/2023 Deposit -Split- 10.56 307,695.62

03/09/2023 Deposit -Split- 25.89 307,721.51

03/09/2023 Tax Payment IRS Tax Payment for Period: 02/01/2023-
02/28/2023

271-000-229.1 Payroll Liabilities:Federal Taxes (941/944) -1,335.68 306,385.83

03/09/2023 Deposit 271-000-658 404. Penal Fines 2,956.05 309,341.88

03/09/2023 Check 16074 UNIQUE MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES INC

Invoice #6110796 271-790-803 800. Professional and Contract Services:803. Unique Management Costs -9.85 309,332.03

03/10/2023 Payroll Check DD Karen E. Brower Pay Period: 02/22/2023-03/07/2023 Direct Deposit Payable -271.14 309,060.89

03/10/2023 Payroll Check DD Shera Van Goor Pay Period: 02/22/2023-03/07/2023 Direct Deposit Payable -215.44 308,845.45

03/10/2023 Payroll Check DD Jeffrey L. Babbitt Pay Period: 02/22/2023-03/07/2023 Direct Deposit Payable -1,168.26 307,677.19

03/10/2023 Payroll Check DD Jennifer L. Chamberlain Pay Period: 02/22/2023-03/07/2023 Direct Deposit Payable -669.68 307,007.51

03/10/2023 Payroll Check DD Reilly J. Brower Pay Period: 02/22/2023-03/07/2023 Direct Deposit Payable -352.61 306,654.90

03/10/2023 Payroll Check DD Alexis Adrianse Pay Period: 02/22/2023-03/07/2023 Direct Deposit Payable -402.80 306,252.10

03/10/2023 Payroll Check DD Karen K. Shaffer Pay Period: 02/22/2023-03/07/2023 Direct Deposit Payable -368.61 305,883.49

03/13/2023 Check 16076 Jeffrey L. Babbitt 271-790-960.2 703-728. Operations:709. Ed. & Train Dor:709.1 Travel and Meetings -33.67 305,849.82

03/13/2023 Check 16075 Foster, Swift, Collins & Smith Invoice #853656 271-790-801 800. Professional and Contract Services:801. Legal Fees -728.50 305,121.32

03/16/2023 Deposit -Split- 4.87 305,126.19

03/17/2023 Deposit -Split- 48.60 305,174.79

03/17/2023 Check 16077 Fish Window Cleaning Invoice #1460-242986 271-790-930 729-734. Facilities and Equipment -120.00 305,054.79

03/20/2023 Tax Payment MI Department of Treasury Tax Payment for Period: 02/01/2023-
02/28/2023

271-000-228.3 Payroll Liabilities:MI Income Tax -289.16 304,765.63

03/20/2023 Deposit -Split- 0.48 304,766.11

03/24/2023 Payroll Check DD Jennifer L. Chamberlain Pay Period: 03/08/2023-03/21/2023 Direct Deposit Payable -669.69 304,096.42

03/24/2023 Payroll Check DD Karen E. Brower Pay Period: 03/08/2023-03/21/2023 Direct Deposit Payable -271.15 303,825.27

03/24/2023 Payroll Check DD Jeffrey L. Babbitt Pay Period: 03/08/2023-03/21/2023 Direct Deposit Payable -1,168.26 302,657.01

03/24/2023 Payroll Check DD Reilly J. Brower Pay Period: 03/08/2023-03/21/2023 Direct Deposit Payable -283.96 302,373.05

03/24/2023 Payroll Check DD Alexis Adrianse Pay Period: 03/08/2023-03/21/2023 Direct Deposit Payable -394.11 301,978.94

03/24/2023 Payroll Check DD Shera Van Goor Pay Period: 03/08/2023-03/21/2023 Direct Deposit Payable -227.15 301,751.79

03/24/2023 Check 16078 US Bank Equipment Finance Invoice #496821026 271-790-931 729-734. Facilities and Equipment:730. Equip Rental and Maintenance -399.91 301,351.88

03/24/2023 Payroll Check DD Karen K. Shaffer Pay Period: 03/08/2023-03/21/2023 Direct Deposit Payable -331.76 301,020.12

03/27/2023 Deposit -Split- 13.50 301,033.62

03/28/2023 Deposit -Split- 2.09 301,035.71

03/31/2023 Expense Chase Card Services -Split- -2,915.87 298,119.84

03/31/2023 Deposit Interest 271-000-665 405-407. Other Types of Income:406. Interest Income Dor 56.11 298,175.95



DORR TOWNSHIP LIBRARY
General Ledger

March 2023

Accrual Basis  Monday, April 10, 2023 05:18 PM GMT-04:00   2/2

DATE TRANSACTION 
TYPE

NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION SPLIT AMOUNT BALANCE

03/31/2023 Deposit -Split- 15,238.02 313,413.97

03/31/2023 Check 16080 Midwest Tape Invoice #503585460 271-790-736 703-728. Operations:711. databases -503.16 312,910.81

03/31/2023 Check 16084 T-Mobile Account #970594354 271-790-920 729-734. Facilities and Equipment:729. Rent, Parking, Utilities:729.1 
Telephone, Telecommunications

-163.31 312,747.50

Total for 271-000-001 Checking $4,742.55



DORR TOWNSHIP LIBRARY
Profit and Loss

March 2023

Accrual Basis  Monday, April 10, 2023 05:18 PM GMT-04:00   1/2

TOTAL

Income

271-000-402.0 402. Millage 1,136.80

271-000-658 404. Penal Fines 2,956.05

271-000-699 581. Township Appropriation 13,500.00

43400 583. Direct Public Support

43460 583.3 Legacies and Bequests

271-000-674.2 583.3.1 Annuity 356.20

Total 43460 583.3 Legacies and Bequests 356.20

Total 43400 583. Direct Public Support 356.20

46400 405-407. Other Types of Income

271-000-665 406. Interest Income Dor 378.25

271-000-675.1 405. Miscellaneous Revenue

271-00-642.1 405.5 Book Sales 21.79

271-000-602.3 405.4 Faxes 25.10

271-000-602.4 405.6 Unique Management Fees 9.85

271-000-659 405.2 Fines 36.55

271-000-667 405.3 Meeting Room Rental 80.00

271-000-675.2 405.9 Uncategorized Income 9.10

271-000.602.1 405.1 Copies 138.35

Total 271-000-675.1 405. Miscellaneous Revenue 320.74

271-000-676.1 407. Reimbursments

271-000-676.2 407.1 Credit Card Credits 144.02

271-000-676.3 407.2 Book Replacement 39.89

Total 271-000-676.1 407. Reimbursments 183.91

Total 46400 405-407. Other Types of Income 882.90

Total Income $18,831.95

GROSS PROFIT $18,831.95

Expenses

271-790-715.3 702. Payroll Expenses 80.00

271-790-930 729-734. Facilities and Equipment 120.00

271-790-921 729. Rent, Parking, Utilities 54.00

271-790-920 729.1 Telephone, Telecommunications 433.26

Total 271-790-921 729. Rent, Parking, Utilities 487.26

271-790-931 730. Equip Rental and Maintenance 399.91

271-790-933 732. Technology 718.50

Total 271-790-930 729-734. Facilities and Equipment 1,725.67

62100 800. Professional and Contract Services

271-790-801 801. Legal Fees 728.50

271-790-803 803. Unique Management Costs 9.85

Total 62100 800. Professional and Contract Services 738.35



DORR TOWNSHIP LIBRARY
Profit and Loss

March 2023

Accrual Basis  Monday, April 10, 2023 05:18 PM GMT-04:00   2/2

TOTAL

65000 703-728. Operations

271-790-727 703. Books 1,106.94

271-790-730 705. Periodicals 29.95

271-790-732 708. AV

271-790-733 708.2 Audiobooks 81.92

271-790-734 708.3 DVD 133.78

Total 271-790-732 708. AV 215.70

271-790-736 711. databases 503.16

271-790-737 720. Supplies

271-790-738 720.1 Collection/Office Supplies 414.44

Total 271-790-737 720. Supplies 414.44

271-790-880 710. Programs (Community Promotions) 496.27

271-790-960.1 709. Ed. & Train Dor

271-790-960.2 709.1 Travel and Meetings 33.67

Total 271-790-960.1 709. Ed. & Train Dor 33.67

Total 65000 703-728. Operations 2,800.13

780. Misc Expense

782. Square Reader Fees 3.65

Total 780. Misc Expense 3.65

Payroll Expenses

271-790-702 Wages 7,809.28

271-790-715.1 Taxes 613.07

Total Payroll Expenses 8,422.35

Total Expenses $13,770.15

NET OPERATING INCOME $5,061.80

NET INCOME $5,061.80



Director’s Report, April 2023

Library Operation Updates

This month’s Storytime theme is Let’s Talk About Caring for the Earth, and Karen Shaffer had 17

children at her Recycling Storytime on April 4. Our April 27 program on the history of Allegan County Poor

Farms with the Library of Michigan’s Adam Oster has generated a lot of excitement. Signup is not required, but

15 people have signed up as of Friday noon. Social media is abuzz!

We have continued to reach out to fill the remaining Plates ‘n’ Pages spots for September and October.

Children’s book author and illustrator Adam Zenz recently joined the roster. Karen Bos, the new Tribal Librarian

for the Gun Lake Tribe, has reached out to a few Potawatomi storytellers on our behalf and is awaiting

response.

Statistics

Circulation statistics continue to be strong. Hoopla use kicked up yet another notch in the third month of

high use. RLA data for Libby was unavailable by the time of the meeting.

Budget and Financial Items

The Budget is up to date. A Year-End Analysis has been performed and will be shared later in the

meeting.

Staff and Building Items

We received one proposal for cleaning services from Coverall, which will be presented later in the

meeting. Reilly ordered 5 new 8’ banquet tables for programming. Reilly’s desktop computer was irreversably

damaged by an electrical surge. A replacement has been ordered and should arrive next week. I signed a

contract with Griffin Pest Control to provide monthly services at $78 per month plus 2 outside perimeter

treatments per year. The total is just over $1,000 annually, which is nearly equal to the amount saved by

reducing the director’s wage increase.

Meetings, Workshops, etc.

I completed the Virtual Millage Series of webinars in March and am engaged in a series of webinars in

April called Cultivating the Relationship-Driven Library.

April 3, I sat down with Karen Bos from the Gun Lake Tribe for a great conversation about ways we can

collaborate in the future.



April 13, I attended the Lakeland Library Coop Board and Advisory Council meetings. One upcoming

event that will impact our functioning to some extent is Lakeland’s decision to phase out its free email service

to member libraries. I have reached out to Jeff Miling about the possibility of using Township email and talked

with the staff to begin to generate alternatives. Lakeland is working on presenting a replacement email service

for which they will charge $300-$400 per year. The timeline for the phase-out at this point is a year or so.

Later on April 13, we had a staff meeting at which we discussed Lakeland’s expectation that Patron

Point digital library card registration service be implemented and advertised by each library by June 1. The staff

has several concerns. I am taking their questions to Amber McLean, who is the point person at Lakeland for

this project. We also discussed the need for revisions in the Volunteer Policy, which will be discussed later in

the meeting.

Volunteers

Jadelyn Horton completed her required volunteer hours.

Library Closings

The library closed early at 12:30 PM on April 5 due to power outage.

Completed April 14, 2023, 1:15PM



2022
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Books 4006 3461 4590 4258 3676 5177 5526 4764 4215 4205 3879 3386

Magazines 188 172 242 170 239 322 208 169 280 280 238 255

Mango Languages 0 13 3 4 1 1 0 7 5 4 2 4

Hoopla 110 134 131 173 149 145 134 130 130 154 142 111

eBooks 254 198 233 236 249 223 266 265 273 281 289 275

eAudiobooks 336 257 335 348 327 308 313 318 309 379 362 358

eMagazines 39 60 52 35 22 30 12 17 21 20 44 23

Libby/Overdrive RLA

Loans 148 123 136 177 138 157 144 155 136 154 161 156

AV 278 235 293 291 233 258 333 275 224 255 228 301

DVDs 826 705 963 934 751 796 1057 875 578 728 834 804

Ancestry 3 0 230 362 102 65 108 196 42 512 572 337

LLC Sent 391 333 367 321 243 385 339 366 374 396 316 334

LLC Borrowed 299 223 176 257 175 307 286 329 485 244 223 232

MeL in 57 50 44 38 48 44 53 51 53 54 60 38

MeL out 63 54 47 40 50 44 58 51 58 53 60 37

2023
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Books 4263 4118 4682

Magazines 230 287 291

Mango Languages 2 49 12

Hoopla 198 198 205

eBooks 259 252 323

eAudiobooks 365 320 388

eMagazines 27 19 34

Libby/Overdrive RLA

Loans 167 171

AV 328 237 414

DVDs 879 634 853

Ancestry 63 13 70

LLC Sent 372 387 475

LLC Borrowed 437 251 394

MeL in 67 56 71

MeL out 70 54 69





Proposed 2023-2024 Budget

Proposed 2022-2023 Budget Proposed 2023-2024 Budget

Proposed 2022-2023 Budget Proposed 2023-2024 Budget

Proposed 2022-2023 Budget Proposed 2023-2024 Budget

Change from
previous year

$119,150.00 $124,650.00

$12,400.00 $28,350.00

$244,900.00 $267,150.00 -22,250.00

Emp. Wages -$6,500.00
Payroll taxes $0.00
Health Insurance $1,000.00

-$5,500.00
Emergency Min Wage Increase Fund $14,350.00
Total with Min Wage Increase $139,000.00

$0.00
$0.00

Audit fee $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $0.00
Collec�on Agency $50.00 $50.00 $0.00
Custodial Fees $5,600.00 $8,000.00
Legal Fees $2,000.00 $5,750.00 -$3,750.00
Professional Dues $800.00 $800.00 $0.00
Library Board Bonding $350.00 $350.00 $0.00
Workers Comp $600.00 $600.00 $0.00
Strategic Planning $9,800.00

-$15,950.00
$0.00
$0.00

Books $16,400.00 $17,000.00 -$600.00
$6,700.00 -$800.00
$5,285.00 -$1,675.00
$1,370.00 $1,420.00
$3,645.00 $455.00

$89,500.00
$26,650.00 $26,650.00

$3,000.00 $2,000.00

$96,000.00

Total

Total

Adult $5,900.00
Childrens $3,610.00

Tween $2,790.00
YA $4,100.00



Proposed 2023-2024 Budget
DVD $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $0.00
Audiobooks $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $0.00
Video Games $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00
Games to Go $250.00 $250.00 $0.00
Kits $500.00 $500.00 $0.00
Binge Boxes $500.00 $500.00 $0.00
Periodicals $1,500.00 $1,750.00 -$250.00
Programs $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

Adver�sing $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00
Office/General Supplies $4,500.00 $7,000.00 -$2,500.00
Employee Training $8,000.00 $6,000.00 $2,000.00
Library Board Training $400.00 $400.00 $0.00
Transporta�on $400.00 $500.00 -$100.00
Coop Fees $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $0.00

Databases -$6,100.00
-$1,160.00

$0.00
-$2,540.00

$0.00
-$2,400.00

$0.00
$0.00

-$7,550.00
$0.00
$0.00

Building Ins. 3000

General Programming $9,000.00 $9,000.00
Summer Reading $3,000.00 $3,000.00
Grant Purchases

$3,500.00 $4,660.00
Mango Languages $1,500.00 $1,500.00
Ancestry.com $1,500.00 $4,040.00
Movie License $400.00 $400.00
Hoopla (ebooks) $3,000.00 $5,400.00
World Trade Press $400.00 $400.00

$2,500.00 $2,500.00

Overdrive (ebooks, em

Linked-In Learning/Ly

$12,800.00 $18,900.00

$79,950.00 $87,500.00Total

Proposed 2022-2023 Budget Proposed 2023-2024 Budget



Proposed 2023-2024 Budget
3000 2500 $500.00

U�li�es $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $0.00
Internet/phone $0.00
Trash $0.00
Recycling $0.00

Building Maintenance and Improvement $3,200.00 $4,200.00 -$1,000.00
Tables $500.00 $100.00

$300.00 $300.00 $0.00
Security system $900.00 $900.00 $0.00
Other building $500.00 $0.00 $500.00
Pest Control $0.00 -$1,100.00
Q Window Cleaning $0.00 $500.00 -$500.00

$1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00
Equipment $4,750.00

$1,500.00 $2,050.00 -$550.00
AED $500.00 $500.00 $0.00
Firewall $200.00 $200.00 $0.00
Computer $8,000.00 $2,000.00 $6,000.00

$0.00
$0.00

Copier $5,000.00 $5,700.00 -$700.00
Website $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00
Misc $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00

$0.00
Equipment  Mant. -$500.00

Computer Maint. $2,000.00 $2,500.00 -$500.00
CD/DVD Cleaner $400.00 $400.00 $0.00
So�ware $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00

Misc 100 100 $0.00

General Liability Insur

Makerspace Equipme

Annual Cleaning

Hotspots (grant funde

$400.00

$1,100.00

$17,200.00 $12,450.00

$3,400.00 $3,900.00

General
Grant Funds

               Grant Funds

Total $33,400.00 $26,650.00



Proposed 2023-2024 Budget

Projected Revenue Proposed 2022-2023 Budget Proposed 2023-2024 Budget
Change from
previous year

Total

INTEREST 600 1200 600
PENAL FINES 25000 28000 3000
STATE AID 3500 3500 0
MILLAGE 160000 168000 8000
FRIENDS 200 200
Annui�es, grants, etc 4274.4 4274.4 0

0
0
0

MISC INCOME 1000 2000 1000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Transfer from Savings 9800 9800
Carry over from last years budget 0
TOWNSHIP APPROPRIATION 50000 55400 5400

244574.4 272374.4 27800

Allianz
LSTA Grant
ACCF Grant
Misc. Grants

Fines
Copies
Room Rental
summer reading
Misc.
Cra�
Bus trip
Water Color Classes
Sales
Faxes
Credit Card Credits
Misc Cash out





Year-End Fiscal Report and Financial Forecast, FYE 2023

Report and Recommendations

Below is a table detailing the financial performance of the Library over the past fiscal year.

Budgeted % of Total Actual % of Total % of Budgeted YE Variance

REVENUE $ 244,574.40 100.0% $ 295,091.83 100.0% 120.7% $ 50,517.43

Interest $ 600.00 0.2% $ 1,527.74 0.5% 254.6% $ 927.74

Penal Fines $ 25,000.00 10.2% $ 27,871.29 9.4% 111.5% $ 2,871.29

State Aid $ 3,500.00 1.4% $ 7,785.93 2.6% 222.5% $ 4,285.93

Millage $ 160,000.00 65.4% $ 179,770.35 60.9% 112.4% $ 19,770.35

Friends $ 200.00 0.1% $ 215.00 0.1% 107.5% $ 15.00

Annuities, grants, etc $ 4,274.40 1.7% $ 5,840.62 2.0% 136.6% $ 1,566.22

Misc Income $ 1,000.00 0.4% $ 8,580.90 2.9% 858.1% $ 7,580.90

Township Appropriation $ 50,000.00 20.4% $ 63,500.00 21.5% 127.0% $ 13,500.00

EXPENSES $ 241,400.00 100.0% $ 227,896.31 100.0% 94.4% $ (13,503.69)

Staff Expenses $ 124,750.00 51.7% $ 112,243.36 49.3% 90.0% $ (12,506.64)

Professional Fees $ 6,800.00 2.8% $ 7,390.56 3.2% 108.7% $ 590.56

Building Expenses $ 29,900.00 12.4% $ 27,364.03 12.0% 91.5% $ (2,535.97)

Operating Expenses $ 79,950.00 33.1% $ 80,898.36 35.5% 101.2% $ 948.36

Books $ 16,400.00 6.8% $ 16,763.19 7.4% 102.2% $ 363.19

AV $ 3,700.00 1.5% $ 3,340.79 1.5% 90.3% $ (359.21)

Periodicals $ 1,500.00 0.6% $ 1,717.00 0.8% 114.5% $ 217.00

Other Physical $ 1,250.00 0.5% $ 248.18 0.1% 19.9% $ (1,001.82)

PHYSICAL MATERIALS $ 22,850.00 9.5% $ 22,069.16 9.7% 96.6% $ (780.84)

DIGITAL MATERIALS $ 12,800.00 5.3% $ 12,724.48 5.6% 99.4% $ (75.52)

PROGRAMMING $ 12,000.00 5.0% $ 18,033.36 7.9% 150.3% $ 6,033.36

OTHER OPERATING $ 32,300.00 13.4% $ 28,071.36 12.3% 86.9% $ (4,228.64)

REV - EXP $ 3,174.40 $ 67,195.52

● Every category of revenue was significantly greater than what we budgeted.

● Most categories of spending were a bit underbudget, the notable exceptions being Legal Fees and

Periodicals, which were already adjusted upward for the current Fiscal Year, as well as Programming,

which included Plates ‘n’ Pages (funded by a $10K ARP Humanities Grant) and Comics Creators Club

(much of which was paid for by the Friends).

● Consequently, we ended the year with $67K in unspent funds.

The charts below detail Revenue Sources and Budgeted vs. Actual Revenue.



The final two charts show Budgeted vs. Actual Expenses at a broad level and then with more detail breaking

out the Operating Expenses.



● The Financial Forecast assumes an average 3% annual growth in taxable property value. This follows information

given to me by the deputy Township Supervisor. Property tax revenue will generally rise with local inflation,

limited by Headlee to 5% or less. No other revenue is assumed to increase at all.

● The Forecast also assumes several regular cost increases over the years in Personnel costs, Co-op fees,

Databases, and Insurance.



● Assuming no drastic changes are effected in state Minimum Wage laws, Personnel cost increases can be

kept to an average 3% yearly cost-of-living increase..

● Co-op fees are assumed to follow the 5% annual increase I was told to expect as a maximum for FYE

2023. Actual increases probably will not exceed this rate.

● Database subscription fees do increase annually, but to some extent we can control some of these

increases by limiting what is available to the patrons. With this compromise, I feel comfortable with a 3%

average annual increase.

● I was told by the Decker Agency to expect moderate increases in Liability Insurance premiums, and I hold

them at 3% here.

● Periodic, temporary increases in certain expense categories also appear in the Forecast.

● Professional and contracted services in FYE 2024 includes $9,800 for Strategic Planning and $3,500 in

additional Legal Fees to accommodate ongoing policy revision, including an updating of the Personnel

Policy Manual. In FYE 2027, the category includes an extra $4K to pay for an in-house update to the

Strategic Plan.

● Insurance includes estimated costs for Cyber Insurance, which, if discontinued by the Township, is

something we need to consider adding. Township Clerk Debbie Sewers has reported to me recently that

the Cyber Insurance from the Beazley Group has been renewed for the next year at the Township level

and continues to cover the Library.

● My recommendations include

● Minimizing increases or freezing expense categories over the next several years. By 2029, our next

millage efforts will be in full swing. Keeping the budget down will lend us credibility as stewards of the

public funds. This should be doable given

▪ Our proven ability to economize, bring effective programming to our community without great

expense;

▪ Our budget adjustments to match actual FYE 2023 expenditures with FYE 2024 budgeted

amounts;

▪ The fact that we can adjust volumes purchased in response to rising prices, if needed.

● Be more aggressive with investing,

▪ Taking $161,000 out of Savings

▪ (leaving funds equivalent to the previous year’s expenses plus 3.86% to cover a year

ahead and 25% of the current year’s budget, a solid minimum recommended by financial

experts)

▪ Investing that amount in a Money Market Account at a minimum of 4% APY. All investments will

be made in accordance with our Financial Policies.



● Considering an exploration of long-term planning for a new library building, with the Money Market

investment tracked as a Capital Projects Fund.

▪ Consider the following figures as a loose example of the possibility, just as an off-hand

illustration:

▪ A 12,000 sq. ft. library building with approximately a 60% increase in Community space,

Materials space, and Staff space, would cost an estimated $2,773,600:

▪ $1,776,000 at $148/sq. ft. to build

▪ 25% of that or $444,000 for contractors

▪ 8% of that or $142,000 for an architect

▪ $411,600 to increase materials to fill new shelf space

▪ $161,000 invested in an MMA at 4.25% APY in FYE 2024 should yield $37,246.80 by FYE

2029, giving us $198,246.80 in the Capital Fund, or about 7.15% of the total cost of the

new building.



REVENUES
Property taxes [1]
State grants
Fines and forfeitures - penal fines
Interest
Other [2]

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Recreation and culture:

Personnel costs [3]

Book purchases [7]
AV materials
Collections
Periodicals
Programs [8]
Advertising
Supplies
Education and training
Transportation
Co-op fees [9]
Databases
Insurance
Facilities and equipment
Miscellaneous

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES

Professional and contracted services 

FYE 2024 FYE 2025 FYE 2026 FYE 2027 FYE 2028 FYE 2029

$ 168,000.00 $ 173,000.00 $ 178,200.00 $ 183,500.00 $ 189,000.00 $ 194,600.00
$ 3,500.00 $ 3,500.00 $ 3,500.00 $ 3,500.00 $ 3,500.00 $ 3,500.00
$ 28,000.00 $ 28,000.00 $ 28,000.00 $ 28,000.00 $ 28,000.00 $ 28,000.00
$ 1,200.00 $ 1,200.00 $ 1,200.00 $ 1,200.00 $ 1,200.00 $ 1,200.00
$ 6,474.40 $ 6,475.00 $ 6,475.00 $ 6,475.00 $ 6,475.00 $ 6,475.00
$ 207,174.40 $ 212,175.00 $ 217,375.00 $ 222,675.00 $ 228,175.00 $ 233,775.00

$ 124,650.00 $ 128,400.00 $ 132,300.00 $ 136,300.00 $ 140,400.00 $ 144,700.00
$28,350.00  [5] $ 15,300.00 $ 15,300.00 $19,300.00  [6] $ 15,300.00 $ 15,300.00
$ 17,000.00 $ 17,000.00 $ 17,000.00 $ 17,000.00 $ 17,000.00 $ 17,000.00
$ 3,700.00 $ 3,700.00 $ 3,700.00 $ 3,700.00 $ 3,700.00 $ 3,700.00
$ 1,250.00 $ 1,250.00 $ 1,250.00 $ 1,250.00 $ 1,250.00 $ 1,250.00
$ 1,750.00 $ 1,750.00 $ 1,750.00 $ 1,750.00 $ 1,750.00 $ 1,750.00
$ 12,000.00 $ 12,000.00 $ 12,000.00 $ 12,000.00 $ 12,000.00 $ 12,000.00
$ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00
$ 7,000.00 $ 7,000.00 $ 7,000.00 $ 7,000.00 $ 7,000.00 $ 7,000.00
$ 6,000.00 $ 6,000.00 $ 6,000.00 $ 6,000.00 $ 6,000.00 $ 6,000.00
$ 500.00 $ 500.00 $ 500.00 $ 500.00 $ 500.00 $ 500.00
$ 18,000.00 $ 18,900.00 $ 19,500.00 $ 20,100.00 $ 20,700.00 $ 21,300.00
$ $ 18,000.00 $ 18,540.00 $ $ 21,200.00 $ 21,900.00
$ 2,500.00 $3,500.00  [12] $ 3,600.00 $ 3,710.00 $ 3,820.00 $ 3,935.00
$ 24,050.00 $ 24,050.00 $ 24,050.00 $ 24,050.00 $ 24,050.00 $ 24,050.00
$ 100.00 $ 100.00 $ 100.00 $ 100.00 $ 100.00 $ 100.00
$ 266,750.00 $ 258,450.00 $ 263,590.00 $ 274,360.00 $ 275,770.00 $ 281,485.00

$ (59,575.60) $ (46,275.00) $ (46,215.00) $ (51,685.00) $ (47,595.00) $ (47,710.00)

18,900.00  [10 20,600.00  [11



FYE 2024 FYE 2025 FYE 2026 FYE 2027 FYE 2028 FYE 2029
OTHER FINANCING SOURCE
Transfers from General Fund

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

Current Budget Expenditures+3.86%
25% Current Fiscal Year Budget

Ideal Reserve
EXCESS/(DEFICIENCY)

MMA Investment at 4.25%
Cumulative total

55400 55400 55400 55400 55400 55400

$ (4,175.60) $ 9,125.00 $ 9,185.00 $ 3,715.00 $ 7,805.00 $ 7,690.00

$ 509,242.40 $ 505,066.80 $ 514,191.80 $ 523,376.80 $ 527,091.80 $ 534,896.80

$ 505,066.80 $ 514,191.80 $ 523,376.80 $ 527,091.80 $ 534,896.80 $ 542,586.80

$ 277,046.55 $ 268,426.17 $ 273,764.57 $ 284,950.30 $ 286,414.72 $ 292,350.32
$ 66,687.50 $ 64,612.50 $ 65,897.50 $ 68,590.00 $ 68,942.50 $ 70,371.25
$ 343,734.05 $ 333,038.67 $ 339,662.07 $ 353,540.30 $ 355,357.22 $ 362,721.57
$ 161,332.75 $ 181,153.13 $ 183,714.73 $ 173,551.50 $ 179,539.58 $ 179,865.23

$161,000.00 $6,842.50 $7,133.31 $7,436.47 $7,752.52 $8,082.00
$161,000.00 $167,842.50 $174,975.81 $182,412.28 $190,164.80 $198,246.80



1. Volunteer Policy

- The Dorr Township Library welcomes members of the community serving as volunteers.
The services volunteers perform are valued and valuable. Volunteer activities are governed by
the following guidelines:

o A volunteer represents the Library to the community while actively serving as a
volunteer.

o A volunteer is expected to follow approved policies and procedures of the
Library during the time of volunteering within the Library building and at library
events elsewhere.

o The Library may decide to discontinue or change a volunteer’s service
assignment if it is determined that the assignment is no longer beneficial.

o The Library cannot guarantee any specific amount of hours for individual
volunteers.

o Preference for most volunteer activities is given to local students who must
fulfill school requirements.

o The Library will not accept any court-ordered volunteers who have committed
crimes involving theft, assault, or danger to children or other felonies.

The Dorr Township Library welcomes volunteers, but will not provide any compensation besides
a letter of acknowledgement of service. Volunteers will be asked to check in before beginning
work so that hours can be accurately logged.
















































	Agenda04172023.pdf
	Minutes20230328.pdf
	Mar Balance Sheet.pdf
	Mar Check Register.pdf
	Mar General Ledger.pdf
	Mar Profit and Loss.pdf
	04 April Director's report.pdf
	Budget 2023-2024_20230407.pdf
	Year-End Fiscal Report and Financial Forecast_FYE2023.pdf
	Financial Forecast FYE24-FYE29.pdf
	Old Volunteer Policy.pdf
	Dorr Township Library Proposal 2023_Coverall.pdf

